
PRELIMINARY AGENDA  
REGULAR SESSION 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
North Plains Senior Center 

31450 NW Commercial Street 
Monday, August 18, 2014 – 7:00 P.M. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER  
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. CONSENT AGENDA:  (The items on the Consent Agenda are normally 

considered in a single motion. Any item may be removed for separate 
consideration upon request by any member of the Council.) 

 
A. Approval of regular session agenda 
B. Approval of minutes of 08/04/2014 Council meeting 

 
5.  PUBLIC COMMENT: (Persons wishing to speak on matters not on the agenda may 

be recognized at this time.  Speakers must complete a “Public Comment Registration 
form” on the information table and return it to the City Recorder.  You are not required 
to give your address when speaking to the City Council, only your name.  
Presentations are limited to five minutes.) 

   
6. PRESENTATION 
 None Scheduled 
 
7. STAFF REPORTS 
 Staff reports will be provided by the Public Works Director, the Chief of Police and the 

Library Director.  
 
8. PUBLIC HEARING: 

None Scheduled 
 
9. NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Discussion of proposed open space near McKay Creek and 307th development 
B. Approve Westside Quilters Guild request to include Jessie Mays Community Hall 

in Public Art Project displaying quilt designs 
C. Consider Resolution Numbers: 1850 and 1851 Special City Allotment Grant 

Applications for Pacific Street and Commercial Street 
 
10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
 None Scheduled   
 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, August 18, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 1 of 31



11. ORDINANCES: 
 
 FIRST READING:   

None Scheduled 
 

SECOND READING: 
None Scheduled 
 

12. CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
13. COUNCIL REPORTS 

A. Council reports will be provided by the Mayor and City Councilors on meetings 
attended and other items. 

B. September 2014 Council Calendar 
  

14. ADVICE/INFORMATION ITEMS: 
 North Plains Marketplace every Thursday evening on Commercial Street 
 Concerts in the Park: Every Friday night in August from 6:30 to 8:30 

 
15. EXECUTIVE SESSION:  (No action may be taken in executive session. If action 

needs to be taken, the Council will do so in regular session.) 
A. Adjourn to Executive Session in accordance with ORS 192.660(2)(i) and 

192.660(8) regarding employee performance evaluations 
1) To review employee performance of the City Manager  

  
16. ADJOURNMENT: 

***** 
North Plains City Council meetings are accessible for disabled individuals.  The City will also 
endeavor to provide services for persons with impaired hearing or vision and other services, 
if requested, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.  To obtain services, please call City Hall 
at (503) 647-5555  

***** 
The following City Council Meetings are scheduled to be held at the North Plains 

Senior Center, 31450 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon. 
 

The meetings will be held on the following dates at 7:00 p.m.: 
 

Tuesday, Sept 2, 2014 Monday, Sept. 15, 2014 Monday, October 6, 2014 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, August 18, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 2 of 31



CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MINUTES REGULAR SESSION 

North Plains Senior Center 
31450 NW Commercial Street 

Monday, August 4, 2014 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor David Hatcher called the Regular Session of the City 
Council to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Hatcher led the flag salute.  
 
3. ROLL CALL: Mayor David Hatcher, Council President Teri Lenahan, Councilors: 

Charlynn Newton, Robert Kindel, Jr., Michael Demagalski, Michael Broome and Glen 
Warren 

 

Staff present: City Manager Martha DeBry, City Recorder Margaret Reh 
 
4. CONSENT AGENDA: 

A. Approval of regular session agenda 
B. Approval of minutes of 07/21/2014 Council meeting 

 
Motion by Broome and seconded by Warren to approve the Consent Agenda. The motion 
was approved unanimously. 
 
5.  PUBLIC COMMENT:  
 No comments were forthcoming. 
 
6. PRESENTATIONS: 
 None Scheduled 
 
7. STAFF REPORTS: 
 Staff reports were not requested for this meeting. 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 None Scheduled 
 
9. NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Approval of Resolution No. 1849 offering feasibility study for the remodel of Jessie 
Mays Community Hall to be awarded to Woofter Architecture. 

 
DeBry presented the staff report. Four architect firms were interviewed for a contract to 
conduct a Facility Needs Assessment and develop a preliminary conceptual design for 
Jessie Mays Park. Discussion ensued. 
 
Motion by Demagalski. Second by Broome to adopt Resolution No.1849 approving the 
selection of Woofter Architecture to provide a facility needs assessment and preliminary 
conceptual design for Jessie Mays Park. 
 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, August 18, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 3 of 31



10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
 None Scheduled 
 
11. ORDINANCES: 
  

FIRST READING: 
 None Scheduled 
 

SECOND READING: 
 None Scheduled 
 
12. CITY MANAGER REPORT 

The City Manager was not requested to present a report at this meeting. 
 
13. COUNCIL REPORTS 
 
Councilor Newton requested the Council be polled to approve her attending the League of 
Oregon Cities conference in Eugene. There was only $1000 approved for conferences and 
training in the Council budget and Newton was concerned she would be using a substantial 
portion of the budget if she attended.  
 
14. ADVICE/INFORMATION ITEMS: 

 North Plains Marketplace every Thursday evening on Commercial Street 
 Concerts in the Park: Every Friday night in August from 6:30 to 8:30 
 National Night Out August 5th 

 North Plains Elephant Garlic Festival-August 8-9-10. 
 

15. EXECUTIVE SESSION:   
 
The Council meeting was adjourned into Executive Session at 7:23 p.m. for the purpose of 
reviewing performance evaluations of the City Manager.  This Executive Session was 
continued from the 7/21/14 Executive Session. Another Executive Session will be scheduled 
for the August 18, 2014 meeting which will include the City Manager toward the end of the 
Executive Session. 
  
16. ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Hatcher continued the Executive Session until August 18, 

2014 and adjourned the City Council Regular Session at 11:00 p.m. 
 
 
______________________________ 
David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
 
_______________________________ Date approved ___________________ 
Margaret L. Reh, City Recorder 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, August 18, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 4 of 31



 
Page - 1 

City of North Plains 
Police Department  

8/14/14 
 
 
TO:               Martha DeBry, City Manager 
  City Council 
  Department Heads 
 
FROM: Bill Snyder, Police Chief 
 
SUBJ.: DEPARTMENT REPORT   
 
-Officers arrested a subject for possession of marijuana and another for possession of heroin. 
-Officers of NPPD, OSP, and WCSO arrested a subject for trespassing.  The subject resisted 
arrest and assaulted one of the officers.  The subject is still in custody as of this date. 
-A residence was burglarized while the owners were away. 
  
North Plains officers are continuing an investigation of an embezzlement.  This investigation has 
been ongoing for about a year. 
 
Please congratulate Officer Matt Glem as he has been selected for the part time (temporary) 
police position for North Plains. 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, August 18, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 5 of 31



Activity
2014 

July

2014 

June

2014 

May

2014 

Apr

2014 

Mar

2014 

Feb

2014 

Jan

2013 

Dec

2013 

Nov

2013 

Oct

2013 

Sep

2013 

Aug

2013 

July

2013 

June

2013 

May

2013 

April

2013 

March

2013 

Feb

Agency Assist 2           1       1       3       3  NA        -       5        -       1       1        -       4        -           1       1 

Animal Bite/Complaint          -             -        -        -        -        -        -       1        -       1        -        -       1        - -       -                 - 

Arson - Possible          -             -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1 -       -                 - 

Assault          -            2       1        -        -        -  NA        -        -       1        -        -       1       1        - -                1 

Burglary 1          -            1        -       1        -        -  NA        -       1       1        -       1        -        -        1           1       1 

Child Abuse          -             -        -        -        -       1  NA        -        -        -        -        -        -        - -       -                 - 

Child Neglect          -             -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1        -        - -       -                 - 

Criminal Mischief 1           2       3        -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1        -        -       1        1           2       1 

Death Investigation          -             -        -        -        -       1  NA        -        -        -        -        -        -        - -       -                 - 

Detox Arrest          -             -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1 -       -                 - 

Drug Arrest 2          -            1       2       1       1       2  NA       4        -        -       1       1       3       2        2           2       1 

Drug Investigation          -            2       1        -        -        -  NA        -        -        -        -        -        -        - -       -                 - 

DUII 1          -            1        -        -       1        -  NA        -       2        -       1       1       1        - 1      -                 - 

False Information Arrest          -             -        -        -        -        -  NA       1        -        -        -        -        -        - -       -                 - 

Forgery          -             -        -        -        -        -        -       1        -       1        -        -        -        - -       -                 - 

Found Property          -             -        -        -       1       1  NA       2       2       1       1       1       1       1 -       -                1 

Fraud          -            1       4        -        -       1  NA        -        -        -        -        -        -        - -       -                 - 

Furnishing Alcohol to Minor          -             -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1        - -       -                 - 

Harrassment 1           1          1        -       1        -       1  NA        -       1       1        -        -       1        -        1 -                1 

Hit and Run 1          -             -        -       1        -        -  NA       1        -       1        -        -       1       1        1           1        - 

Identity Theft          -             -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1 -       -                 - 

Information Report 1          -         3       1        -       4  NA       2        -       3       1       2       7        -        3           3       1 

Interfering Arrest 1          -             -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1       1        -        -        -        - -       -                 - 

Littering Arrest          -         1        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1 -       -                 - 

Menacing Arrest          -         1        -        -        -  NA        -        -       1        -        -        - -       -                 - 

Police Mental Hold           1       1        -        -        -  NA        -        -        -        -        -        -        - -       -                1 

Police Protective Custody          -   -         -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       1      1         -       

Rape II          -            1        -        -       1        -  NA        -        -        -        -        -        -        - -       -                 - 

Reckless Driving          -             -        -        -       2        -  NA        -        -        -        -       1        -        - -       -                 - 

Recovery of Stolen Property          -             -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1        -        -        - -       -                 - 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, August 18, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 6 of 31



Activity
2014 

July

2014 

June

2014 

May

2014 

Apr

2014 

Mar

2014 

Feb

2014 

Jan

2013 

Dec

2013 

Nov

2013 

Oct

2013 

Sep

2013 

Aug

2013 

July

2013 

June

2013 

May

2013 

April

2013 

March

2013 

Feb

Runaway          -         1        -        -        -  NA       2        -        -        -        -       2        - -       -                 - 

Sex Abuse III           1 

Stalking Arrest          -             -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1 -       -                 - 

Switched Plates          -   -       -                 - 

Theft           2          2       1       1       1       2  NA       1       6       2       1       3        -        -        1           1        - 

Traffic Related Reports          -            1       2        -        -        -  NA        -        -        -        -        -        -        - -       -                 - 

Trespass II          -             -        -        -       1        -  NA        -        -        -        -        -        -        - -       -                 - 

Vehicle - Accident 1          -             -        -        -       2        -  NA       1       3       3        -       1        -       1 -       -                 - 

Vehicle - Accident (Fatal)          -             -        -       1        -        -  NA        -        -        -        -        -        -        - -       -                 - 

Vehicle - Eluding Arrest          -   -         -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -          1      

Vehicle - Stolen          -             -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1        -        -        - -       -                1 

Vehicle - Unlawful Entry 1          -             -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1       3        -       1        2           2        - 

Vehicle - Tow          -            1        -       3       1       1  NA        -        -        -        -        -        -        - -       -                 - 

Violation Release Arrest          -             -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1        -        -        -        - -       -                 - 

Warrant arrest          -             -        -        -       1       1  NA       1        -        -       1       4        -        -        1           1       1 

Welfare Check          -            2        -       1        -       1  NA       1        -       2        -       1       1       1        2 -                5 

Total Arrests/Reports/ 

Investigations 13 8 16 21 12 15 19 NA 18 21 20 11 21 20 18 17 15 17

Total Patrol Hours 320 244.25 210.5

Total Reserve Hours 152.5 136.5 79.5

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, August 18, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 7 of 31



    City of North Plains 

Public Works Department 

6/28/2014 

TO:   Martha DeBry, City Manager 

  City Council 

  Department Heads 

FROM:  Blake Boyles, Public Works Director 

SUBJECT: DEPARTMENT REPORT  

 

 Commercial St parking issues 

 Special City Allotment Grant application 

 Water quality issues (arranging for tank cleaning and leak detection) 

 Sunset Ridge Subdivision coordination 

 Sunset Terrace Subdivision coordination 

 Pacific Estates Subdivision coordination 

 McKay Fields Subdivision coordination 

 Emergency Management planning 

Public Works Crews are working on the following projects/tasks: 

 Equipment Maintenance  

 Crack sealing 

 Cross Connection  

 Locates 

 Leak repair 

 Service installation 

 Water samples 

 Mowing 

 Park Maintenance 

 

 

 

 

Future reports will include tasks accomplished and those pending. If there is any other information you may 

want to see in the report, please let me know.- 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, August 18, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 8 of 31



North Plains Public Library Information for August 2014 
 
Summer Reading Programs for All Ages ends August 30.  The general theme is SCIENCE.  
The Children’s Slogan is Fizz, Boom, Read!  The Teen Slogan is Spark a Reaction.  The Adult 
Slogan is Literary Elements. 
 
Wacky Wednesdays are hour-long performances for children and their families held at the Jesse 
Mays Community Hall at 30975 NW Hillcrest Street. 
 

Red Yarn:  Deep Woods Naturalist.  August 6, 1 p.m. 
Calling all naturalists!  Sing and dance along with Red Yarn and his lovable critters as they take 
you on a scientific journey into the Deep Woods. 
 

Evergreen Aviation and Space Museum.  August 13, 1 p.m. 
Come learn all about outer space, rockets, space suits, and more! 

 
Reptile Man - End of Summer Reading Party.  August 20, 1 p.m. 

Come celebrate the end of summer and the end of the Supper Reading Program with the Reptile 
Man.  Meet snakes, turtles, lizards & more!  You don’t want to miss this party! 
 
Art Exhibit.  The art exhibit on display through August features historic North Plains Elephant 
Garlic Festival posters - one for each of the 17 years the festival has occurred.  The creator of 
nine of these colorful posters was Brenna White of Tualatin, a working artist who paints original 
work, commissions, and murals.  This year’s festival will take place on August 8, 9, and 10 at 
Jessie Mays Community Park in North Plains.  For more information and a peek at this year’s 
poster by Brenna White, see https://www.facebook.com/funstinks. 
 
First Friday Flick - New location!!!!  Our movies will now be shown at the Jessie Mays 
Community Hall at 30975 NW Hillcrest Street at 6 p.m. on the first Friday of the month.  Join us 
on Friday, August 1 for a PG-rated 3D animated film featuring a construction worker who leads 
his friends on a mission to save the universe from an evil tyrant who wants to freeze everything in 
the world into a fixed place with special glue. 
 
Writers’ Group.  Share your writing projects and receive feedback from peers on Thursday, 
August 7 at 6:30 p.m.  New members are welcome to join.  (This is not a teacher/trainer-led 
class.) 
 
Storytimes.  Children ages 0-6 are invited to participate every Wednesday at 11:30 a.m. in the 
children's section of the Library. 
 August 6  Storytime with Miss Marion:  Let’s Fly Away! 
 August 13 Storytime with Librarian Becky:  Crocodiles 
 August 20 Special Guest Storytime:  Julianna and her Baby KuneKune Pig 
 August 27 Storytime with Youth Librarian Jackie:  Colors 
 
Friends of the Library Meeting.  There will be a general meeting of the Friends on Monday, 
August 11 at the Library from 7:30-9 p.m.  New members are welcome to attend. 
 
Library Book Club.  This group takes a summer break through August.  Join us next on 
Wednesday, September 24 at 7:30 p.m. at the Library to discuss The Goldfinch by Donna Tartt. 
 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, August 18, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 9 of 31

https://www.facebook.com/funstinks


 

Agenda Item No: 9A     

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  August 1, 2014 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  Martha DeBry, City Manager 

Subject: Status of proposed open space 

REQUEST:  Council comment on open space area near McKay Creek.  
 
HISTORY:  The City recently conducted a preapplication meeting for a subdivision 
project near 307th Avenue.  The builder has advised that approximately 5 acres may be 
available for sale. 
 
Acquisition of the area would be consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan.  The 
builder has invited the Council to view the property through a rough trail off Pacific 
Street.  
 
The City has not received an application for the project. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  This item is for information only. After the City has received an 
application, and the Planning Commission has reviewed it, will the City be able to 
determine if it has an interest in acquiring the property. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  No recommendation.  Item is for information only.  
 
Attachment: Draft subdivision layout. 
 
 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, August 18, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 10 of 31






































































































































































_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, August 18, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 11 of 31



 

Agenda Item No: 9B     

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  August 13, 2014 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: Approve Westside Quilters Guild request to hang quilt on side of Jessie 
Mays Community Hall 

REQUEST:  Consider allowing Westside Quilters space on a wall of Jessie Mays for 
public art. 
 
HISTORY: Westside Quilters is participating in a public art project to display quilt 
designs on large buildings such as barns or halls.   
 
Recently Julie Ellis asked the City to consider allowing a quilt which would honor one of 
their members who recently passed away: Veronica (Roni) Andrews.  Ms. Andrews was 
very active in the North Plains community as a volunteer.   
 
The space on the north wall (along Wascoe Street) of Jessie Mays Community Hall was 
identified as an ideal spot for the quilt, which is a painted on a 4’x4’ piece of wood and 
attached to the building.  A copy of a draft application and photos of installations are 
attached.  
 
Barn quilts are considered art, and there are people who will seek them out as a part of 
trail designated by the Westside Quilters.  Washington County is adjusting its code to 
allow these quilts in unincorporated areas. This should provide a small benefit to the 
community by attracting more tourists.   
 
Typically the quilts are hung for 5 years. The Quilters were advised Jessie Mays may be 
the subject of a capital project in coming years, and agreed the quilt could be removed 
sooner if needed. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Westside Quilters would fund the full cost of installing and removing 
the quilt, in addition to creating the art. This project would have no budget impact. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Council authorize making Jessie Mays Community Hall 
available as a site for displaying a Westside Quilters barn quilt. 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, August 18, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 12 of 31



_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, August 18, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 13 of 31



_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, August 18, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 14 of 31



_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, August 18, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 15 of 31



_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, August 18, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 16 of 31



 

Agenda Item No: 9C     

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  August 18, 2014 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  Public Works Director Blake Boyles 

Subject: Resolution No. 1850 Authorizing Submittal of Application for 2015 Special 
City Allotment Grant Program-Commercial Street at Main 

REQUEST:  Approve Resolution No. 1850 authorizing submittal of an application to the 
Oregon Department of Transportation to receive $52,000.00 of funding in order to 
reconstruct a portion of NW Commercial Street from NW Main Street 370 feet east. 
 
HISTORY: Each biennium, the Oregon Transportation Commission disperses funds 
through the Oregon Department of Transportation to assist small cities under 5,000 
population with grant funds to repair, reconstruct or maintain local streets that are not 
part of the State Highway system, pursuant to ORS 386.805. 
 
Over the years, the Special Cities Allotment Program has allowed the city to overlay 
other portions of city streets which the city would not have been able to afford. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The total estimated cost for this 2" overlay project is $52,000.00, 
which would be included in the 2015-2016 fiscal year budget.  If the grant application is 
successful and ODOT awards the funds for this improvement, this section of street 
would be scheduled for overlay this coming fiscal year. 
 
POSITIVE IMPACTS:  Submittal of the grant application would allow the city to be 
considered for funding to improve a 370 foot section of NW Commercial Street east of 
NW Main Street. 
 
NEGATIVE IMPACTS:  If the grant is not awarded to the City, the street improvement 
would not occur. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt Resolution No.1850, authorizing submittal of an 
application to the Oregon Department of Transportation for 2015 Small Cities Allotment 
Grant Program in the amount of $52,000.00 for NW Commercial Street from NW Main 
Street east 370 feet. 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, August 18, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 17 of 31



RESOLUTION NO. 1850 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, 
OREGON, AUTHORIZING SUBMITTAL OF AN OREGON DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORTATION SPECIAL CITY ALLOTMENT GRANT APPLICATION FOR NW 
COMMERCIAL STREET FROM NW MAIN STREET EAST 370 FEET 

 
 

WHEREAS, under the provisions of ORS 366.800 and 366.805, there has been 
withdrawn from state highway funds appropriated for allocation to the several cities of the 
State of Oregon the sum of Five Hundred Thousand and No/100 ($500,000.00) Dollars, 
and in addition there has been withdrawn from monies available to the Department of 
Transportation from the State Highway Fund the sum of Five Hundred Thousand and 
No/100 ($500,000.00) Dollars.  As provided in ORS 366.805, said sums have been set 
up in a separate account to be administered by the Oregon Transportation Commission 
and to be allotted each year by said commission to be spent, within cities of 5,000 or 
fewer persons, upon streets not a part of the state highway system that are inadequate 
for the capacity they serve, or are in a condition detrimental to safety. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of North Plains is an incorporated city of the State of Oregon 
and has a population of less than 5,000 as given by the latest official federal census. The 
following street of said city, NW Commercial Street from NW Main Street east 370 feet, 
meets the conditions required in ORS 366.805. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. That NW Commercial Street from NW Main Street east 370 
feet is inadequate for the capacity it serves or is in a condition 
detrimental to safety. 

 
Section 2. That said street of said City is in need of repair, reconstruction, 

or other major improvement. 
 

Section 3. That said street is not a part of the state highway system, and 
is under the jurisdiction and control of the City. 

 
Section 4. That the Oregon Transportation Commission hereby is 

respectfully requested to consider and declare said street as 
qualified for reconstruction, repair, or other improvements out 
of funds allocated and made available by and through the said 
$1,000,000 appropriation of revenues which is to be 
administered and spent by the Transportation Commission. 

 
Section 5. That the City of North Plains does hereby offer to 

Transportation Commission and does hereby pledge 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, August 18, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 18 of 31



complete cooperation and assistance to the end, that said City 
may share and participate in the use and benefit of said 
special fund and appropriation; and therefore does designate 
Blake Boyles, Public Works Director, as the official 
representative of the City in all negotiations resulting from this 
request. 

 
Section 6. There is attached hereto and made a part hereof, a city map 

on which is indicated the street described in this Resolution. 
 

Section 7. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon 
adoption by the City Council. 

 
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of August, 2014. 

 
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 
 
 
 
BY:  _____________________________________ 

David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
BY:  ______________________________________ 

Margaret L. Reh, City Recorder 
 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, August 18, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 19 of 31



_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, August 18, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 20 of 31



_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, August 18, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 21 of 31



_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, August 18, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 22 of 31



 

Agenda Item No: 9C     

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  August 1, 2014 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  Public Works Director Blake Boyles 

Subject: Resolution No. 1851 Authorizing Submittal of Application for 2015 Special 
City Allotment Grant Program-Pacific Street East of Main 

REQUEST: Approve Resolution No. 1851 authorizing submittal of an application to the 
Oregon Department of Transportation to receive $50,000.00 of funding in order to 
reconstruct a portion of NW Pacific Street from NW Main Street 825 east. 
 
HISTORY: Each biennium, the Oregon Transportation Commission disperses funds 
through the Oregon Department of Transportation to assist small cities under 5,000 
population with grant funds to repair, reconstruct or maintain local streets that are not 
part of the State Highway system, pursuant to ORS 386.805. 
 
Over the years, the Special Cities Allotment Program has allowed the city to overlay 
other portions of city streets which the city would not have been able to afford. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The total estimated cost for this 2" overlay project is $50,000.00, 
which has been included in the 2015-2016 fiscal year budget.  If the grant application is 
successful and ODOT awards the funds for this improvement, this section of street 
would be scheduled for overlay this coming fiscal year. 
 
POSITIVE IMPACTS:  Submittal of the grant application would allow the city to be 
considered for funding to improve an 825 foot section of NW Pacific Street east of NW 
Main Street. 
 
NEGATIVE IMPACTS:  If the grant is not awarded to the City, the street improvement 
would not occur. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt Resolution No. 1851, authorizing submittal of an 
application to the Oregon Department of Transportation for 2015 Small Cities Allotment 
Grant Program in the amount of $50,000.00 for NW Pacific Street from NW Main Street 
east 825 feet. 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, August 18, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 23 of 31



RESOLUTION NO. 1851 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, 
OREGON, AUTHORIZING SUBMITTAL OF AN APPLICATION TO THE OREGON 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR THE 2015 SPECIAL CITY 
ALLOTMENT GRANT PROGRAM TO RECONSTRUCT A PORTION OF NW PACIFIC 

STREET 
 
 

WHEREAS, under the provisions of ORS 366.800 and 366.805, there has been 
withdrawn from state highway funds appropriated for allocation to the several cities of the 
State of Oregon the sum of Five Hundred Thousand and No/100 ($500,000.00) Dollars, 
and in addition there has been withdrawn from monies available to the Department of 
Transportation from the State Highway Fund the sum of Five Hundred Thousand and 
No/100 ($500,000.00) Dollars.  As provided in ORS 366.805, said sums have been set 
up in a separate account to be administered by the Oregon Transportation Commission 
and to be allotted each year by said commission to be spent, within cities of 5,000 or 
fewer persons, upon streets not a part of the state highway system that are inadequate 
for the capacity they serve, or are in, a condition detrimental to safety. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of North Plains is an incorporated city of the State of Oregon 
and has a population of less than 5,000 as given by the latest official federal census. The 
following streets of said city, NW Pacific Street from NW Main Street east 825 feet, meet 
the conditions required in ORS 366.805. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. That NW Pacific Street from NW Main Street 825 feet east is 
inadequate for the capacity they serve or are in a condition 
detrimental to safety. 

 
Section 2. That said streets of said City are in need of repair, 

reconstruction, or other major improvement. 
 

Section 3. That said streets are not a part of the state highway system, 
and are under the jurisdiction and control of the City. 

 
Section 4. That the Oregon Transportation Commission hereby is 

respectfully requested to consider and declare said streets as 
qualified for reconstruction, repair, or other improvements out 
of funds allocated and made available by and through the said 
$1,000,000 appropriation of revenues which is to be 
administered and spent by the Transportation Commission. 

 
Section 5. That the City of North Plains does hereby offer to 

Transportation Commission and does hereby pledge 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, August 18, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 24 of 31



complete cooperation and assistance to the end, that said City 
may share and participate in the use and benefit of said 
special fund and appropriation; and therefore does designate 
Blake Boyles, Public Works Director, as the official 
representative of the City in all negotiations resulting from this 
request. 

 
Section 6. There is attached hereto and made a part hereof, a city map 

on which is indicated the street described in this Resolution. 
 

Section 7. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon 
adoption by the City Council. 

 
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of August, 2014. 

 
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 
 
 
 
BY:  _____________________________________ 

David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
BY:  ______________________________________ 

Margaret L. Reh, City Recorder 
 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, August 18, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 25 of 31



_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, August 18, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 26 of 31



_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, August 18, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 27 of 31



_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, August 18, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 28 of 31



_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, August 18, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 29 of 31



September 2014 Council Calendar 
 

Meeting Primary Alternate Note Date 

City Council   09/02 

First Friday Flick at Jessie Mays Community Hall! 
Movie in the Hall 6:00 p.m. 09/05 

Washington County 
Coordinating Committee 
(WCCC) 

Hatcher DeBry 2nd Monday @  12 noon 09/08 

Planning Commission Demagalski  2nd Wednesday @ 7 p.m. 09/10 

Library Board Hatcher  3rd Wednesday @ 7 p.m. 
(moved forward this month) 09/10 

Washington County Office of 
Community Development 
Policy Advisory Board 

Kindel Demagalski 2nd Thursday @ 7 p.m. 09/11 

City Council   7:00 p.m. at North Plains 
Senior Center 

09/15 

Metro Policy Advisory 
Committee (MPAC) Hatcher  4th Wednesday @ 5 p.m. 09/24 

Parks Board  4th Wednesday @ 6 p.m. 09/24 

Metropolitan Area 
Communications Commission 
(MACC) 

DeBry Demagalski   

 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, August 18, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 30 of 31



NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SESSION MINUTES 

 
Monday, August 18 2014 @ 7:30 p.m. 

MEETING DATE AND TIME 
 

North Plains Senior Center 
LOCATION 

 

THIS MEETING IS CALLED TO ORDER UNDER AUTHORITY OF: 

 192.660(2)(a) Employment of public officer, staff member or individual (attorney) 

 192.660(2)(b) Discipline of Public Officers and Employees 

 192.660(2)(d) Labor Negotiations 

 192.660(2)(e) Real Property Transactions 

 192.660(2)(f) Exempt Public Records 

 192.690(2)(g) Trade Negotiations 

 192.660(2)(h) Legal Counsel 

X 192.660(2)(i) Employee Evaluations 

 192.660(2)(j) Public Investments 

 
PURSUANT TO OREGON REVISED STATUTES, 

NO INFORMATION FROM THIS SESSION SHALL BE DISCLOSED BY THE NEWS MEDIA. 
 

 
 
In Attendance:    
 Elected Officials:    
   Mayor David Hatcher  Council President Lenahan  
   Councilor Kindel  Councilor Demagalski  
   Councilor Broome  Councilor Newton  
   Councilor Warren   
     
 Staff:    
     
 City Attorney:    
     
 Consultants:    
     
 Media:    
     
Called to Order at: ______________ Adjourned at: _______________ 
     
Specific Issue Discussed: 

 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, August 18, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 31 of 31


	13B Calendar September 2014
	4A 081814 Preliminary Agenda
	4B 080414 City Council Minutes
	5A July Monthly Report-Public Works
	5A Library Monthly Report August 2014
	9A Memo 307th
	9Aa 307th Biggi Development Plan Concept
	9B Memo quilt
	9B Westside Quilters Quilt Barn Trail of Washington County
	9Ca Memo Resolution No. 1850 Special City Allotment-Commercial Street at Main East
	9Ca Resolution No. 1850 SCA Commercial and Main East
	9Ca Special City Allotment Application-Commercial Street and Main
	9Cb Memo Resolution No. 1851 Special City Allotment-Pacific East of Main
	9Cb Resolution No. 1851 SCA Pacific Street East of Main
	9Cb Special City Allotment Application-Pacific Street East of Main



